
TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   
February 26, 2024 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 
    February 26, 2024 - 1:30 p.m. 

THEA Headquarters  
1104 E. Twiggs Street  

First Floor Board Room 
Tampa, FL 33602  

For any person who wishes to address the Board, a sign-up sheet is provided at the Board Room 
entrance. Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes. When addressing the Board, please state 
your name and address and speak clearly into the microphone. If distributing backup materials, 
please furnish ten (10) copies for the Authority Board members and staff. Any person who decides 
to appeal any decisions of the Authority concerning any matter considered at its meeting or public 
hearing will need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, may need to hire a court 
reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which an appeal is to be based.  

I. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance

II. Public Input/Public Presentations

III. Consent Agenda

A. Approval of the Minutes from the January 22, 2024, Board Meeting

B. Video Wall Upgrade Project - $941,605.15

IV. Discussion/Action Items

A. Planning & Innovation, John Weatherford, Committee Chair – Bob Frey,
Director

1. Approval of Whiting Street Project Development and Environmental
(PD&E) Study Staff Recommended Preferred Alternative
Purpose: At the June 27, 2022, THEA Board Meeting, the City of Tampa asked
THEA to revisit the preferred alternative for the Whiting Street PD&E Study. Based
on the City’s recent change in development patterns to a more residential urban core,
the City has implemented Vision Zero policies to create a safer, pedestrian-friendly
environment. THEA has worked with City of Tampa staff and consultants to ensure
that Whiting Street will be consistent with the future Tampa development patterns.
Based on those meetings, input, and analysis, staff recommends consensus-modified
Alternative 2 as the preferred alternative for Board approval.



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   
February 26, 2024 

Upon Board approval, staff will complete the Whiting Street PD&E study and return 
for final approval and transmittal to Operations for design and construction. 

Action: Request the Board to approve consensus-modified preferred alternative 2 
and direct staff to complete the Whiting Street PD&E Study.

2. Emerging Tech
Purpose: To procure professional services to provide support to THEA for the
analysis, design, and deployment of emerging technology. The technology
investigated and tested is intended to create a functional advantage in operations,
safety, and efficiency for THEA customers and the general public who interact
with THEA facilities. The firms selected will be assigned specific emerging
technology projects based on expertise. The skill sets used in this procurement are
technical in nature and differ from the traditional ITS and traffic engineering skill
sets available through other contracts.
Action: Request Board to:
a. Approve the evaluation committee’s recommendation to approve the top five

ranked firms.

Firm 

Southwest Research Institute 

Deloitte Consulting 

The MITRE Corporation 

HNTB - Digital Transformation Solutions

CDM Smith 

b. Authorize and direct staff to negotiate and execute a contract with each firm.
Contract execution is subject to final review and approval of THEA General
Counsel.

B. Operations and Engineering – Brian Pickard, P.E., Director
1. THEA Headquarters Generator Replacement

Purpose: To provide all the labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals
necessary to replace the existing generator that provides emergency power to the
THEA Headquarters building. This includes the disposal of the existing generator
and all attachments.

Funding: Capital Budget - $170,000.59



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   
February 26, 2024 

Action: Request the Board: 

a. Approve the selection of the lowest bid from Accurate Power and
Technology, Inc. in the amount of $170,000.59 for the removal and
replacement of the generator that provides emergency power to the THEA
Headquarters building.

Firm Bid Amount 

Accurate Power and Technology, Inc $170,000.59 

CJ’s Sales and Service of Ocala, Inc. $234,453.00 

Santa Fe Power Solutions, Inc. $202,627.05 

Zabatt Engine Services, Inc. $213,058.38 

b. Authorize and direct staff to negotiate and execute a contract with the lowest
responsible bid firm. If negotiations are unsuccessful, staff shall negotiate
with the next lowest bid firm. The contract is subject to review and approval
of THEA General Counsel.

2. Construction, Engineering, and Inspection (CEI) for the Office Modifications

and Video Wall Replacement Projects – KCI Technologies, Inc. - $147,999

Purpose: To procure the services of a CEI consultant to perform field engineering

and testing for the work called for in the contract documents for the Video Wall

Design-Build and Office Modification projects. Negotiations were conducted and

finalized with KCI selected previously (August 26, 2019, Board meeting) for task-

driven contracts for minor design and CEI projects.

Funding: Capital Budget - $147,999

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute a task

order with KCI for $147,999 to provide CEI services for the Video Wall Design-

Build and Office Modification projects

3. Change Order to contract with C.W. Roberts Contracting, Inc.

$215,494

Purpose: Reimburse C.W. Roberts for the design and construction of the mill and

overlay of the eastbound 78th Street off-ramp as an addition to the existing East

Selmon Resurfacing FY2023 project. Potholes have recently formed, and the

entire ramp needs to be upgraded. The original contract amount was $7,887,297.

This is an increase of 2.7%.



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   
February 26, 2024 

Funding: Capital Budget $215,494 

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to sign a change 
order to C.W. Roberts Contracting, Inc. in the amount of $215,494 for milling and 
paving the eastbound 78th Street off-ramp.

Eastbound Exit at US 301 – not to exceed $552,800

Purpose: To reimburse Coca-Cola to complete the design of additional turning
movement capacity and safety upgrades to the Expressway’s US 301 eastbound
exit. This work complements the added work Coca-Cola must do to comply with
their agreement with FDOT for increased access to their production plant at the
Southwest corner of the Expressway and US 301. By having Coca-Cola complete
the design work and the construction work, THEA will save time and money
through efficiencies and ensure that the construction work blends seamlessly with
the Coca-Cola civil work.

Funding: Capital Budget – Not to exceed $552,800

Action: Request the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute an
agreement with Coca-Cola Florida and a purchase order to reimburse for the
design of capacity and safety improvements at the Expressway eastbound exit to
US 301 for a not to exceed amount of $552,800.

4. East Selmon Resurfacing from 78th Street East to Falkenburg Road Purpose: 

To procure a contractor to construct resurfacing improvements from 78th Street 
East to Falkenburg Road on the eastern portion of the Selmon Expressway to 
remove and replace pavement that is showing signs of cracking and delamination.

Funding: Capital Budget

Action: Delegate the authority to approve the selection of the designer and the 
contractor through the procurement of the work to the Executive Director and 
authorizing the Executive Director to negotiate and execute a contract with the 
selected designer and contractor to design and construct the resurfacing 
improvements from 78th Street East to Falkenburg Road on the Selmon 
Expressway. Contract execution is subject to final review and approval of THEA 
General Counsel.

5. Reimburse Coca-Cola for the Design of Upgrades at the Expressway



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   
February 26, 2024 

VII. Old Business

VIII. New Business

IX. Adjournment

V. Staff Reports

A. Operations & Engineering – Brian Pickard, P.E., Director

B. Planning & Innovation – Bob Frey, Director

C. Budget & Finance – Jeff Seward, Director

D. Toll Operations – Tim Garrett, Interim Director

E. Strategy, Communications & Community Engagement– Keisha Boyd, Director

VI. Executive Reports

A. Executive Director – Greg Slater, Executive Director

1. Contract Renewals and Expirations
2. Director’s Report

B. General Counsel – Amy Lettelleir

C. Chairman – Vincent Cassidy

1. Upcoming Meetings

• Board Workshop – March 11, 2024
• Board Meeting – March 25, 2024



Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority 

Minutes of the January 22, 2024, Board Meeting 

1104 E. Twiggs Street 

Tampa, FL 33602 

 The Tampa-Hillsborough County Expressway Authority held a public meeting at 1:30 p.m. on January 

22, 2024, at THEA Headquarters, 1104 E. Twiggs Street in Tampa Florida. The following were present: 

ATTENDANCE 

Board: 

Vincent Cassidy, Chairman 

Bennett Barrow, Vice Chairman 

John Weatherford, Secretary 

FDOT District Secretary David Gwynn, Member 

Commissioner Conna Cameron Cepeda, Member 

Staff: 

Greg Slater 

Amy Lettelleir 

Jeff Seward 

Bob Frey 

Brian Pickard 

Keisha Boyd 

Shari Callahan 

Tim Garrett 

Charlene Varian 

Chaketa Mister 

Lisa Pessina 

Shannon Bush 

Toni Nhlapo 

Brian Ramirez 

Julie Aure 

Gary Holland 

Anna Quinones 

Tiana Hill 

Frederick Pekala 

Felipe Velasco 

Elizabeth Gray 

Judith Villegas 

Szabina Szenassy 

Emma Antolinez 

Others: 

Michael Garau, Kimley-Horn 

John Generali, Wells Fargo 

Snehal Ambare, CDM Smith 

Helen Barton, CDM Smith 

Alex Bourne, RS&H 

Hope Scarpinato, PFM 

Julie Davis, Rivero Gordimer 

Sam Lazzara, Rivero Gordimer 

Elise Leach, Rivero Gordimer 

Jonathan Stein, Rivero Gordimer 

Ethan Drew, Ardaman 

Jim Drapp, HNTB 

Kevin Hoeflich, HNTB 

Sally Dee, Playbook 

Joseph Aguila, Infotect 

Christina Matthews, WSP 

Hector Martinez, MITRE 

LaBaron Lewis, Infotect 

Rachel Hilleny, Playbook 

LaBaron Lewis, Infotect 

Tim Schock, Parsons 

Bill Howell, Lochner 

Joseph Stanton, NMRS 

Rick Patterson, Raymond James



 

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY    

January 22, 2024  

 

    

 

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance  

Chairman Cassidy called the meeting to order at 1:30 pm, followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

Public Input/Public Presentations  

 There was no public comment. 

Consent Agenda  

Approval of the Minutes from the December 11, 2023, Board Meeting 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve the minutes. Mr. Barrow moved 

approval, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

Discussion/Action Items  

Planning & Innovation, John Weatherford, Committee Chair – Bob Frey, Director 

Vulnerable Road User Project – Task Work Order - Commsignia and Yunex - 
$205,005 

Mr. Frey reported that in November 2023, THEA demonstrated a Vulnerable Road User 
(VRU) application aimed at improving bicycle and e-scooter safety using a Commsignia 
“OBU Lite” device.  

Due to the success of the demonstration, a small deployment of a Vulnerable Road User 
safety application is being proposed. This pilot project will test ten V2X Onboard Units 
optimized for micro-mobility (OBU Lite) and other V2X equipment at two intersections 
along Meridian Avenue. Existing THEA infrastructure (RSUs) will generate and broadcast 
Basic Safety Messages (BSM) to equipped bicycles, scooters, and cars to alert drivers and 
riders of potential danger. 

Mr. Frey requested the Board to authorize the Executive Director to execute task orders with 
Commsignia and Yunex for $135,505 and $69,500 respectively, to deploy and test the 
Vulnerable Road User CV2X Safety Project. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval, seconded 

by Mr. Weatherford. 

The Chairman asked about other cities that may have used this technology. Mr. Frey noted 
that the OBU we are using is a prototype and THEA is on the cutting edge as this 
technology is not yet on the market. 

Mr. Barrow asked if both the bicycle and the vehicle receive warning signals. Mr. Frey 
responded in the affirmative, noting that both the vehicle and the bike have devices 
mounted. 

Mr. Gwynn asked at what point the warning would go off. Mr. Fry explained that it is when 
a collision is imminent.  



 

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY    

January 22, 2024  

 

    

There was a brief discussion about the technology and how it works with the cellphone app.  

The Chairman asked if the vehicles that would participate were those on which the 
equipment was previously installed. Mr. Frey explained that a certain number of vehicles 
will go out to test, and once it’s determined to be safe, we’ll recruit participants like we did 
with the CV Pilot. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

 East Selmon Preferred Alternative  

Mr. Frey gave an update on the East Selmon PD&E and the staff-recommended preferred 
alternative. The East Selmon PD&E Study limits are from I-4 to I-75 near Brandon. He 
reviewed current congestion, projected congestion, and crash history, as well as the three 
alternatives: 

Alternative 1 - No Build 

Alternative 2 (Recommended Preferred) - Add Lanes to Outside with Braided Ramps to 
I-75 

Alternative 3 - Add Lanes to Outside without Braided Ramps to I-75 

The benefits of Alternative 2 include improved capacity, improved ramps, and improved 
safety. 

Mr. Frey requested the Board to accept Alternative Two as the Preferred Alternative and 
direct staff to move forward with its refinement, coordinating with the FDOT, Hillsborough 
County, and other Agencies, and public comment and bring it back to the Board for final 
approval. 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval, seconded 

by Mr. Weatherford. 

The Chairman asked for clarification on whether the lanes would be added on grade. Mr. 
Frey replied in the affirmative, noting it is all within the right-of-way.  

The Chairman also asked if in the studies we can determine when the vehicles involved in 
crashes were manufactured. He was particularly interested in any correlation between 
vehicles with large screens, which are potentially distracting, and crashes. Mr. Frey will 
work with the traffic engineer to try and get that information. Mr. Slater added that rear-end 
crashes are typically congestion related. Once you relieve the congestion you eliminate the 
problem. 

    The motion passed unanimously. 

 Emerging Tech Shortlist 

Mr. Frey presented the Evaluation Committee’s recommended list of firms to interview 
relative to the procurement of professional services to provide support to THEA staff for the 



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

analysis, design, and deployment of emerging technology to create a functional advantage in 
operations, safety, and efficiency. 

The purpose is to procure professional services to provide support to THEA staff for the 
analysis, design, and deployment of emerging technology to create a functional advantage in 
operations, safety, and efficiency. The firms selected will be assigned projects based on 
expertise for specific emerging technology projects as determined by THEA staff. 

Mr. Frey requested Board approval for staff to interview the following nine firms and 
develop a shortlist for Board approval. 

Firm 

Arcadis U.S., Inc. 

CDM Smith, Inc. 

Deloitte Consulting 

Ernst & Young Infrastructure Advisors, Inc. 

HNTB Corporation 

Metric Engineering, Inc. 

Michael Baker International, Inc. 

Southwest Research Institute 

The MITRE Corporation 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval, seconded 

by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

Information Technology and Security – Shari Callahan, Director 

 Video Wall Upgrade Project 

Ms. Callahan presented the Evaluation Committee’s rankings for the technology upgrade 
and enhanced the performance of the TMC Video Wall. The benefits of the upgrade include 
a more reliable system, more flexibility, and multi-functional displays. 

She requested the Board: 

a. Approve the recommendation of the evaluation committee.

Firm Ranking 

AVI-SPL LLC 84.67 

Parsons Transportation Group, Inc. 83.89 



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

b. Authorize and direct staff to negotiate and execute a contract with the number one

ranked firm. If negotiations are unsuccessful, staff will negotiate with the number two

ranked firm. Contract execution is subject to final review and approval of THEA

General Counsel.

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve. Mr. Barrow moved approval, seconded 

by Mr. Weatherford. 

Mr. Weatherford asked what the estimated cost is. Mr. Slater noted that once the contract is 

approved we will bring back a task order with the cost estimate. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

Budget and Finance – Commissioner Cepeda, Committee Chair – Jeff Seward, Director 

Acceptance of FY23 Financial Statements/Audit Presentation – Rivero, Gordimer and 

Company 

Mr. Seward gave the Board an overview of last year’s achievements and what’s ahead in 

2024. He noted that we closed the Fiscal Year 2023 OM&A budget with toll collection 

revenue exceeding budget estimates, despite the Statewide toll suspension from Hurricane 

Idalia, and expenditures were under budget. This has allowed us to create a new Strategic 

Capital Programming Fund for three large upcoming capital projects – South Selmon 

Capacity, RTCS, and OBOS allowing us flexibility when it comes time to fund these 

projects. 

He reported on the Debt Service and Bond Ratings. We are maintaining our A+ and A2 

ratings with S&P and Moody’s and we will end FY2023 with a DSR ratio of 2.54, well 

above the Revenue Sufficiency Test. He noted that we estimate this trend of higher DSR for 

FY 2024 as well.  

THEA has added a new financial team staff member, made changes in our processes to 

transition away from paper, and introduced a Purchasing Card program, which is expected to 

yield an estimated first-year rebate of $50K. Mr. Seward also pointed out that, in working 

with our IT Director, an additional layer of cyber-security training, specifically for THEA’s 

financial staff, has been implemented. We are also working toward an Enterprise Resource 

Planning (ERP) System to replace our current procure-to-pay processes, as well as moving 

our timekeeping and payroll processes to a third-party vendor. 

Mr. Seward also reported that THEA will be finalizing our regulatory reporting to the bond 

market and the State of Florida CFO and Auditor General. We will begin our annual revenue 

sufficiency and toll indexing work in preparation for the development of the FY2025 

OM&A budget and Work Program. 

Finally, Mr. Seward thanked his staff and the auditors for their hard work and dedication and 

turned the meeting over to the auditors to report the results of the FY2023 financial audit. 



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

Mr. Sam Lazzara introduced Ms. Julie Davis, Mr. John Stein, and Ms. Elise Leach and gave 
a brief summary of the process.  

Mr. Stein noted that there were no disagreements with management during the audit and the 
audit provides assurances that THEA's financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

He also reported that THEA is in compliance with laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
and no material weaknesses were noted. 

Ms. Davis presented a high-level summary of the financial statements. She reviewed total 
assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows, and net position. She also provided a 
summary of the income statement.  

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to accept the audit. Mr. Weatherford moved 

approval, seconded by Mr. Barrow. 

Mr. Weatherford asked about the increase in investment income. Ms. Davis noted that the 

increase is due to the higher interest rates paid on U.S. Treasury bonds, etc. 

The Chairman expressed his gratitude to the team for their work. 

The motion passed unanimously. 

General Counsel – Amy Lettelleir, Esquire 

Legal Services 

Ms. Lettelleir presented an item to provide specialty legal services to the Authority on an as-

needed basis, including, but not limited to, local government, cyber security, procurement, 

labor and employment, real estate, construction law, and litigation. 

She requested the Board to authorize and direct staff to enter into contracts with the 

following five firms. Contract execution is subject to final review and approval of THEA 

General Counsel. 

Firm 

Bryant Miller Olive 

Gray Robinson 

Mcfarlane Ferguson & McMullen 

Nelson Mullins 

Taylor English 

Chairman Cassidy requested a motion to approve the consent item. Mr. Barrow moved 

approval, seconded by Mr. Weatherford. 

The motion passed unanimously. 



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

Staff Reports  

A. Operations & Engineering – Brian Pickard, P.E., Director

Mr. Pickard presented information on the US 301 eastbound exit ramp, pointing out that

he will have a related item on the February Board agenda. He gave a brief history,

noting that Coca-Cola has constructed a large-scale facility at this interchange. They’ve
worked with Access Management and FDOT to identify a new access point off US 301

to their facility. FDOT required the developer to install a new right lane on southbound

US 301, from the Selmon exit point to Causeway Boulevard. They have also asked

THEA to consider upgrading the exit ramp at that interchange.

The goal of the project is to improve operations and safety at the eastbound Selmon exit

ramp, in conjunction with FDOT and Coca-Cola. THEA will provide a right-lane free-

flow exit ramp to US 301 to improve the flow of exiting vehicles. THEA will also

compensate Coca-Cola for a portion of the design and construction of the project.

Finally, he discussed the eastbound exit ramp improvements, including:

• Exit Ramp Widens from a Single Lane to Three Lanes

• Left Lane-Signal Controlled Left to NB US 301

• Center Lane Signal Controlled Right to SB US 301

• Provides Safer Access to Left Turn Lanes on US 301

• Right Lane Free-flow to SB US 301

• FDOT Required Developer to Extend New Right Lane on

    on SB US 301 from Selmon Expressway to Causeway Blvd. 

• Proposed Design Fee - $552,800

• Estimated Construction Fee - $3,500,000

Chairman Cassidy asked if the growth of Coca-Cola, the jobs, and the activity in and 

out of that location are driving the changes on US 301 and the Expressway to support 

that activity.  

Mr. Pickard noted that is part of the problem, but there are also some safety concerns. 

Mr. Slater added that FDOT required a certain amount of mitigation from Coca-Cola 

based on its impact. What THEA is proposing is that we address some of our existing 

issues, that are separate but in the same area, at the same time. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if we would be doing something here regardless of Coca-Cola. 

Mr. Pickard responded in the affirmative, noting that we would have done it with the 

Selmon East project, but we’re getting a head start on it here. 

Chairman Cassidy asked if THEA is reimbursing Coca-Cola. Brian explained that 

THEA is using Coca-Cola’s designer and contractor to do this work.  

The Chairman asked for clarification on whether THEA is paying for their work. Mr. 

Pickard confirmed that THEA is not paying Coca-Cola for their development work – it 

is 100% on THEA right-of-way.  



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

B. Toll Operations – Tim Garrett, Interim Director

Mr. Garrett reviewed Toll Traffic Statistics for December 2023, starting with the weekly

transactions. The year-to-year comparison shows a slight increase of 100K transactions.

The greatest increase was on the REL. Transactions for SunPass and Toll by Plate are

standard at 69% (transponder) and 31% (toll-by-plate). March is our peak month and

we expect to break another record.

Mr. Weatherford asked about K-Tag and if it is new. Mr. Garrett noted that we went live

with K-Tag a couple of months ago and we are adding others.

C. Information Technology & Security – Shari Callahan, Director

Ms. Callahan provided an update on the Business Continuity Plan currently under

development. It is an over-arching framework and is crisis/emergency management

driven. We are currently in the department focus phase, which includes a review of the

business functions of each department; application priority assessments; identifying

acceptable downtime; reviewing the plan; and creating and incorporating detail into

THEA’s agency-wide plan.

All of this will feed into the disaster recovery plans to ensure we have a full and robust

plan. Ms. Callahan hopes to have a plan in place in a couple of months that can be

tested before hurricane season.

D. Strategy, Communications & Community Engagement– Keisha Boyd, Director

Ms. Boyd reviewed the 2023 publicity stats:

THEA had over 348 media mentions last year for more than $1.6M in publicity value,

reaching more than 125M people. Social media impressions were at almost 1M and our

videos had more than 51K views. Ms. Boyd briefly referenced the culture calendar

handout.

In the Community – THEA partnered with Hillsborough County Homeless and

Community Services Department and provided bikes to two large families; we

participated in the MLK Gala and Parade; supported the Brandon half-marathon and the

Hillsborough County Sheriff’s Office Indian Advisory Council Awards.

Chairman Cassidy asked about the reference to the Super Bowl on the culture calendar.

Ms. Boyd explained our social media content related to the Super Bowl but making it

local.

Executive Reports 

Executive Director – Greg Slater, Executive Director 

Director’s Report – Mr. Slater announced that details for the re-solicitation of the South 

Selmon Capacity Project are being finalized and we will be sharing some details with the 

industry next month. 



TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY   

January 22, 2024  

He also announced that THEA is working with city officials to prepare for Gasparilla, once 

it is settled our asset management team will do a sweep for trash and debris.  

There will be a Board workshop in March to discuss the initial reports from our real estate 

team as well as discuss the Strategic Communications and Marketing Plan. 

Mr. Slater also shared some details about his visit to DC to participate in TRB, noting he 

participated in three different sessions. One was about designing the transportation agency 

of the future; one was a meeting of the Transportation Vulnerability and Resilience Expert 

Task Force. 

Next week we will be visiting the North Texas Tolling Authority to learn from their 

experience replacing their toll system, for which they won an award from IBTTA.  

He also reported that he is now the Chairman of the TEAMFL. 

Mr. Slater announced that both Judith and Emma have returned from maternity leave, and 

THEA will soon be advertising a position for an ITS Manager. 

Finally, he extended his thanks to the Audit team. 

Next. Mr. Slater reported on upcoming Contract Renewals and Expirations. There are five 

contracts, two are expiring – Alliance Air and Pennoni for Miscellaneous Planning - and 

three are one-year renewals – Consor Engineering (2nd), HNTB/GEC (1st), and KCI 

Technologies (1st). 

Chairman Cassidy asked about the St. Patrick's Day parade being downtown 

General Counsel – Amy Lettelleir 

No Report 

Chairman – Vincent Cassidy  

Upcoming Meetings 

• Committees of the Whole – February 12, 2024 - Cancelled

• Board Meeting – February 26, 2024

Old Business - None 

New Business – The Chairman proposed a motion to engage an organization to conduct a 

compensation study on the Board’s two direct  

Mr. Weatherford seconded.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 2:29. 



 

TAMPA HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY    

January 22, 2024  

 

    

APPROVED: _________________________ ATTEST: _______________________ 

  Chairman: Vincent Cassidy  Vice Chairman: Bennett Barrow 

 

DATED THIS 26th DAY OF FEBRUARY 2024. 

 



KCI Technologies, Inc.

Department Estimate

Hilsborough X Consultant Estimate
CEI Services

Item Personnel Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Man Man

No. Classifications 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Months Hours Rate

1 CEI Senior Project Engineer - KCI Michael Simon 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 1.10 181.50        204.29 $37,078.64

2 CEI Senior Project Engineer - KCI Joe McDonnell 0.10 0.10 16.50          204.29 $3,370.79

3 CEI Senior Project Engineer - KCI Eric Rose 0.25 0.25 41.25          204.29 $8,426.96

4 CEI Project Administrator  - KCI 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 1.10 181.50        128.90 $23,395.35

5 CEI Senior Inspector - KCI 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 0.40 4.40 726.00        102.46 $74,385.96

6 CEI Inspector #1 - KCI 0.10 0.10 16.50          81.27 $1,340.97

7 $0.00

8 $0.00

TOTAL 1.05 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.60 7.05 1,163.25     $147,998.67

FIRM PREPARING ESTIMATE:

FINANCIAL PROJECT ID:

FAP NO.:

PROJECT NAME/From/To:

COUNTY:

THEA TMC Renovation

12/8/2023

PROJECT TYPE & DESCRIPTION:

DATE PREPARED:

442027-4-62-01



 02/19/2024 12:39
PLT23067C1R1 East Selmon COR-01 Revised
*** Keith Drake  BID TOTALS
Biditem Description Status - Rnd Quantity Units Unit Price  Bid Total

1

0101  1 MOBILIZATION/GENERAL CONDITIONS 1.000 LS
0101  1  1 BOND 1.000 LS 1,697.80 1,697.80
0102  1 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC 1.000 LS
0102 14 TRAFFIC CONTROL OFFICER 60.000 HR 89.25 5,355.00
0102 76 ARROW BOARD/ADVANCE WARNING ARROW PANEL 5.000 ED 10.25 51.25
0102 99 PORTABLE CHANGEABLE MESSAGE SIGN,TEMPORARY 38.000 ED 21.53 818.14
0102115 TYPE III BARRICADE 8.000 ED 0.92 7.36
0327 70  4 MILLING EX ASPH PAVT, 3" AVG DEPTH 2,308.800 SY 8.96 20,686.85
0334  1 59 SUPERPAVE ASPH CONC, TL- E, HIGH POLYMER 190.500 TN 309.87 59,030.24
0337  7 95 ASPH CONC FRICTN CRSE,TRAFFIC E,FC-12.5,HP 190.500 TN 319.06 60,780.93

0706  1  3 RAISED PAV'T MARKER, TYPE B 61.000 EA 4.75 289.75
0710 11101 PAINTED PAV'T  MARKINGS, STD, WHITE SOLID 6" 0.170 GM 1,542.18 262.17
0710 11102 PAINTED PAV'T  MARKINGS, STD, WHITE SOLID 8" 23.000 LF 3.35 77.05
0710 11170 PAINTED PAV'T  MARKINGS, STD, WHITE ARROWS 1.000 EA 66.94 66.94
0710 11201 PAINTED PAV'T  MARKINGS, STD, YELLOW,SOLID,6" 0.160 GM 1,383.13 221.30
0710 90 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, FINAL SURFACE 1.000 LS 2,231.28 2,231.28
0711 14170 THERMOPLASTIC,  WHITE, ARROW 1.000 EA 127.23 127.23
0711 15101 THERMO, STD-OPEN GRADED ASPH WHITESOLID 6" 0.170 GM 8,218.65 1,397.17
0711 15102 THERMO, STD-OPEN GRADED ASPH SURFAC WHITE SOLID 8" 23.000 LF 16.73 384.79
0711 15201 THERMO, STD-OPEN GRADED ASPH SURFACE YELL SOLID 6" 0.160 GM 7,370.81 1,179.33
0713 PERMANENT TAPE CONCRETE BRIDGES 1.000 LS 137,478.58 137,478.58

Bid Total ========> $352,972.40

smoonian
Line

smoonian
Line

smoonian
Text Box
$215,493.82

smoonian
Text Box
32,895.65

smoonian
Text Box
32,895.65

smoonian
Text Box
27,933.59

smoonian
Text Box
27,933.59



PROJECT: Project Bessie
LOCATION: Tampa, FL

DATE: November 3, 2023

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COMMENTS

Lincks Design 1.0 LS 300,000$                 300,000$                 
Haskell Civil Engineering 1.0 LS 100,000$                 100,000$                 

Design Pricing 400,000$                 

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COMMENTS

Other Expenses -$                          

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COMMENTS
Builder's Risk 0 % 400,000$                 -$                          
Subguard 0 % 400,000$                 -$                          
Overhead & Profit 10.0 % 400,000$                 40,000$                   
General Liability 0.0 % 440,000$                 -$                          
Technology Fee 0.00 % 440,000$                 -$                          

Reimbursable Expenses and Fee 40,000$                   

TOTAL Contractor Price 440,000$                 

DESCRIPTION QTY UM UNIT COST TOTAL COMMENTS
Contingency 12 % 440,000$                 52,800$                   
Owner Supervision  & Coordination 1 30,000$                   30,000$                   
Contracting & Legal 1.0 30,000$                   30,000$                   

-$                          -$                          
-$                          -$                          

Owner Contingnecy and Management 112,800$                 

TOTAL Price 552,800$                 

Design Pricing

Owner Contingnecy and Management

DESCRIPTION

Remarks Clarifications & Exclusions

Other Expenses

Reimbursable Expenses and Fee

This is for design only of the THEA Expressway and 301 Turning Lane Project.  It represents a conceptual/ estimate pending THEA clarifications of scope of design. This was 
based solely on the sketches exchanged with THEA in August 2023.

2 month design approximate duration

THEA Expressway Turning Lane Scope (Design Only)

23 1105 THEA Expressway and 301 Design Only Scope w Signalization Crosstown Team 1 pagePage 1 of 1



CONTRACT RENEWAL 

and 

EXPIRATION REPORT 

(> $30,000)

Report month: February, 2024hh

Project 

Manager
Firm

Description of 

Services

Contract 

Effective 

Date

 Contract 

Expiration 

Date

Term of 

Contract  

(Years)

Bid /                            

Renew /                           

End

Initial  Services 

Date

Emma 
Antolinez

Atkins Global 

Miscellaneous Toll 

Operations 

Support Services

8/24/2021 8/24/2024

3-yr, 2

Optional 1-yr 

Renewals

Renew                               

(1st one-year 

renewal ~             

8/24/24 -                   

8/24/25)

7/27/2009


	2-26-2024 Final Board Agenda
	III A 1-22-2024 Draft Board Minutes
	IV B 2 CEI_Scope_of_Services_FY2024_Video_Wall__TMC_Renovation_112723_AJS_V_1.3 BWP
	1. INTRODUCTION
	2. PROJECT NO. 1 DESCRIPTION
	a. Video Wall Replacement – THEA Project No. I-1323. Project  includes:
	i. Design, development and testing of a complete replacement Video Wall System which will replace and expand the existing system.
	ii. Procurement, furnishing, fabrication, testing, installation, and implementation of the Video Wall at THEA’s Operation Center.
	iii. Warranty and maintenance for and of the system, as further detailed in the scope of work.
	iv. Documentation of the Video Wall Design and provision of user and training manuals.
	v. Comprehensive training of THEA staff on system functions, including operations, administration, and maintenance.

	3. REQUESTED SERVICES
	a. Exercise independent professional judgment in providing architectural, structural, electrical, mechanical, and Intelligent Transportation Systems review and coordination services, in performing Construction Engineering and Inspection services respo...
	b. Pre-Construction Phase
	i. Attendance at the design progress meetings that will include THEA and the Video Wall Vendor (Vendor), and assistance with THEA’s design approval process.
	ii. Review of Vendor’s layout and integration plans for the Video Wall Replacement project.
	iii. Participation with the Vendor in developing strategies for phasing of the construction, maintaining an operable facility during construction, and move-in schedules.
	iv. Assistance to THEA with any required value engineering or scope change exercises.
	v. Review of the permit application process to ensure that the Vendor is obtaining permits in a timely manner, any signatures and payments required by THEA.
	vi. Review of design documents and specifications.
	vii. Perform constructability and phasing review of design documents.
	viii. Review and compare Vendor’s Video Wall Replacement Project and General Contractor’s TMC Renovation Project schedules and coordinate with the Vendor and the General Contractor to resolve potential conflicts.
	ix. Administration of all communication between the Vendor, General Contractor for the TMC Renovation project, and THEA.
	c. Construction Phase
	4. LENGTH OF SERVICES
	a. The Consultant services for this Contract shall begin upon written notification to proceed by the THEA. Construction by the Vendor is anticipated to commence in March 2024 and conclude in January 2030. CEI services are anticipated to be required fr...
	b. The Consultant Senior Project Engineer will track the execution of the Video Wall Construction Contract such that the Consultant is given timely authorization to begin work. While no personnel shall be assigned until written notification by the THE...
	c. For estimating purposes, the Consultant will be allowed an accumulation of fourteen (14) working days to perform preliminary administrative services prior to the issuance of the Contractor’s notice to proceed on and fourteen (14) calendar days to d...
	5. ITEMS TO BE FURNISHED BY THEA TO THE CONSULTANT
	a. THEA, on an as needed basis, will furnish the following Construction Contract documents for the project. These documents may be provided in either paper or electronic format.
	ii. Layout and Integration Plans as they are developed by the Vendor.
	iii. Specifications as provided by the Vendor.
	iv. Public Information Services if Necessary
	v. THEA will provide office space for Consultant to work out of.
	6. ITEMS FURNISHED BY THE CONSULTANT
	a. Office Automation
	i. Provide all software and hardware necessary to efficiently and effectively carry out the responsibilities under this Agreement.
	ii. All computer software and/or associated data for performing these CEI services shall be input by Consultant’s, personnel or subconsultants using equipment furnished by the Consultant.
	iii. Ownership and possession of computer equipment and related software, which is provided by the Consultant, shall remain at all times with the Consultant. The Consultant shall retain responsibility for risk of loss or damage to said equipment durin...
	b. Vehicles
	i. Not Applicable
	c. Field Equipment
	i. The Consultant shall supply survey, inspection and testing equipment, essential in order to carry out the work under this Scope of Services. Such equipment includes those non- consumable and non-expendable items, which are normally needed for this ...
	ii. Hard hats shall have the name of the consulting firm visibly displayed.
	iii. Equipment described herein and expendable materials under this Scope of Services will remain the property of the Consultant and shall be removed at completion of the work.
	iv. The Consultant shall retain responsibility for risk of loss or damage to said equipment during performance of this Scope of Services. Field office equipment shall be maintained and in operational condition at all times.
	d. Licensing for Equipment Operations
	i. The Consultant shall be responsible for obtaining proper licenses for equipment and personnel operating equipment when licenses are required. The license and supporting documents shall be available for verification by THEA, upon request.
	7. LIASON RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. The Consultant shall keep the Authority’s Project Manager informed of all significant activities, decisions, correspondence, reports, and other communication related to its responsibilities under this Scope of Services and shall seek input from the...
	b. The Consultant shall facilitate communications between all parties (i.e. Vendor, architectural, electrical, mechanical, materials, local agencies, etc.) ensuring responses and resolutions are provided in a timely manner. Maintain accurate records t...
	c. Administrative duties performed under this Agreement relating to Invoice Approval Requests, Personnel Approval Requests, User ID Requests, Time Extension Requests, and Supplemental Amendment Requests shall be reviewed and approved by the Authority’...
	8. PERFORMANCE OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. During the term of this Agreement and all Supplemental Amendments thereof, THEA will review various phases of Consultant operations, such as construction inspection, materials sampling and testing, and administrative activities, to determine compli...
	i. Further subdivide assigned inspection responsibilities, reassign inspection personnel, or assign additional inspection personnel, within one week of notification.
	ii. Immediately replace personnel whose performance has been determined by the Consultant and/or THEA to be inadequate.
	iii. Immediately increase the frequency of monitoring and inspection activities in phases of work that are the Consultant's responsibility.
	iv. Increase the scope and frequency of training of the Consultant personnel.
	9. REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. General
	i. It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant to administer, monitor, and inspect the Construction Contract such that the Project is constructed in reasonable conformity with the plans, specifications, and special provisions for the Contract.
	ii. The Consultant shall observe the Vendor’s work to determine the progress and quality of work, identify discrepancies, report significant discrepancies to THEA, and direct Vendor to correct such observed discrepancies.
	iii. The Consultant shall consult with the Authority’s Project Manager as it deems necessary and shall direct all issues, which exceed its delegated authority to the Authority’s Project Manager for THEA action or direction.
	iv. The Consultant shall advise the Authority’s Project Manager of any significant omissions, substitutions, defects, and deficiencies noted in the work of the Vendor and the corrective action that has been directed to be performed by the Vendor. Work...
	b. Survey Control:
	i. The Vendor shall develop and provide all survey control required for this Contract, if required.
	c. Design Coordination:   See 3.b. Pre-Construction Phase.
	d. Project Resident Inspection:
	i. The Consultant shall exercise their independent professional judgment in providing services to monitor and inspect the Vendors on-site construction operations and to inspect all materials entering into the work as required to determine that the qua...
	e. Sampling and Testing:
	f. Engineering Services:
	i. The Consultant shall coordinate the Contract administration activities of all parties other than the Vendor involved in completing the construction project. Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant is not liable to THEA for failure of such parties...
	ii. Services include maintaining the required level of surveillance of the Vendor activities, interpreting plans, specifications, and special provisions for the Contract, maintaining complete, accurate records of all activities and events relating to ...
	1. Schedule and attend, within ten (10) days after the Notice to Proceed, a pre- service conference for the Project. The Consultant shall provide appropriate staff to attend and participate in the pre-service meeting.
	2. Analyze problems that arise on project and proposals submitted by the Vendor, endeavor to resolve such issues, and process the necessary paperwork.
	3. Produce reports, verify quantity calculations, field measure for payment purposes as needed to prevent delays in Vendor operations and ensure prompt processing of such information in order for THEA to make timely payment to the Vendor.
	4. Prepare and submit to the Construction Project Manager monthly, a Construction Status Report, in a format to be provided by THEA.
	5. Video tape the pre-construction conditions throughout the Project limits. Provide a digital photo log or video of project activities, with heavy emphasis on potential claim items/issues and on areas of real/potential public controversy.
	6. The Consultant shall have a digital camera for photographic documentation of noteworthy incidents or events to cover the following areas:
	a. Pre-construction photographs
	b. Normal and exceptional progress of work
	c. Critical path activities
	d. Accidents showing damage.
	e. Unsafe working conditions
	f. Unusual construction techniques
	g. Damaged equipment or materials
	h. Any activity, which may result in claims.
	These photographs will be filed and maintained on the Consultant’s computer. Copies of photographs will be electronically transferred to the CPM at an interval determined by the Senior Project Engineer and the Construction Project Manager.
	The taking of the photographs shall begin the day prior to the start of construction and continue regularly throughout this Project. Photographs shall be taken the days of Conditional, Partial and/or Final Acceptance.
	10. PERSONNEL/STAFFING:
	a. Consultant shall provide qualified personnel necessary to efficiently and effectively carry out its responsibilities identified in this Scope of Services.
	b. Consultant shall provide competent personnel qualified by experience and education as submitted to and approved by the THEA Director of Expressway Operations.
	c. Once authorized, the Consultant shall establish and maintain appropriate staffing throughout the duration of construction and completion of the final estimate. Responsible personnel, thoroughly familiar with all aspects of  architectural, structura...
	d. Construction engineering and inspection forces will be required of the Consultant while the Vendor is working. If Vendor operations are substantially reduced or suspended, the Consultant will reduce its staff appropriately.
	e. In the event that the suspension of Vendor operations requires the removal of Consultant forces from the project, the Consultant will be allowed ten (10) days maximum to demobilize, relocate, or terminate such forces.
	11. OTHER SERVICES:
	a. Upon written authorization by the THEA Director of Expressway Operations or designee, the Consultant will perform additional services in connection with the project not otherwise identified in this Scope of Services. The following items are not inc...
	i. Assist in preparing for arbitration hearings or litigation that occurs during the project time in connection with the construction project covered by this Scope of Services.
	ii. Provide qualified architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical engineering witnesses and exhibits for arbitration hearings or litigation in connection with the Scope of Services.
	iii. Provide inspection services in addition to those provided for in this Scope of Services.
	iv. Provide services determined necessary for the successful completion and closure of the Video Wall Replacement Contract.
	12. PROJECT NO. 2 DESCRIPTION
	Minor interior renovation of multiple offices in the current THEA building.  Project includes:
	a. Level One (1st Floor):
	i.  Reconfiguration of an existing lobby area.  This space is 871 Square Feet and will require the relocation of an existing partition including the hosted door and door hardware, removal of existing floor finishes, millwork. Reconfiguration of lighti...
	ii.  There will be also new returns added to the main lobby area to fix current pressurization issues.
	iii.  An existing conference room will be split into 2 equal offices.  The GC will need to relocate AV equipment and return to owner. The new office spaces will require new light fixtures, new ceiling grid, new floor finishes. There are no structural ...

	b. Level Two (2nd Floor):
	i.  An existing office be split into 2 equal offices. The new office spaces will require new light fixtures, new ceiling grid, new floor finishes. There are no structural impacts, new partitions are non-rated metal stud frame with gyp on both sides up...

	c. Level Three (3rd Floor):
	i.  Three (3) Existing cubicles will need to be removed from an open office area and returned to the owner.  The existing office adjacent to the open office area will be enlarged requiring the ceilings inside the space to be adjusted and will also req...



	13. REQUESTED SERVICES
	a. Exercise independent professional judgment in performing Construction Engineering and Inspection services responsibilities as defined in this Scope of Services for the Minor Interior Renovation of Multiple Offices in THEA’s Headquarters/Traffic Man...
	14. LENGTH OF SERVICES
	a. The Consultant services for this Contract shall begin upon written notification to proceed by the THEA. Construction is anticipated to commence in March 2024 and conclude in November, 2024. CEI services are anticipated to be required from March 202...
	b. The Consultant Senior Project Engineer will track the execution of the Construction Contract such that the Consultant is given timely authorization to begin work. While no personnel shall be assigned until written notification by the THEA has been ...
	c. For estimating purposes, the Consultant will be allowed an accumulation of fourteen (14) working days to perform preliminary administrative services prior to the issuance of the Contractor’s notice to proceed on and fourteen (14) calendar days to d...
	15. ITEMS TO BE FURNISHED BY THEA TO THE CONSULTANT
	a. THEA, on an as needed basis, will furnish the following Construction Contract documents for each project. These documents may be provided in either paper or electronic format.
	i. Construction Plans
	ii. Specifications
	iii. Copy of the Executed Construction Contract
	iv. Public Information Services if Necessary
	v. THEA will provide office space for Contractor to work out of.
	16. ITEMS FURNISHED BY THE CONSULTANT
	a. Office Automation
	i. Provide all software and hardware necessary to efficiently and effectively carry out the responsibilities under this Agreement.
	ii. All computer software and/or associated data shall be input by Consultant vendors, personnel or subconsultants using equipment furnished by the Consultant.
	iii. Ownership and possession of computer equipment and related software, which is provided by the Consultant, shall remain at all times with the Consultant. The Consultant shall retain responsibility for risk of loss or damage to said equipment durin...
	b. Vehicles
	i. Not Applicable
	c. Field Equipment
	i. The Consultant shall supply survey, inspection and testing equipment, essential in order to carry out the work under this Agreement. Such equipment includes those non- consumable and non-expendable items, which are normally needed for this type of ...
	ii. Hard hats shall have the name of the consulting firm visibly displayed.
	iii. Equipment described herein and expendable materials under this Scope of Services will remain the property of the Consultant and shall be removed at completion of the work.
	iv. The Consultant shall retain responsibility for risk of loss or damage to said equipment during performance of this Scope of Services. Field office equipment shall be maintained and in operational condition at all times.
	d. Licensing for Equipment Operations
	i. The Consultant shall be responsible for obtaining proper licenses for equipment and personnel operating equipment when licenses are required. The license and supporting documents shall be available for verification by THEA, upon request.
	17. LIASON RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. The Consultant shall keep the Authority’s Project Manager informed of all significant activities, decisions, correspondence, reports, and other communication related to its responsibilities under this Scope of Services and shall seek input from the...
	b. The Consultant shall facilitate communications between all parties (i.e. architectural, electrical, mechanical, materials, local agencies, etc.) ensuring responses and resolutions are provided in a timely manner. Maintain accurate records to docume...
	c. Administrative duties performed under this Agreement relating to Invoice Approval Requests, Personnel Approval Requests, User ID Requests, Time Extension Requests, and Supplemental Amendment Requests shall be reviewed and approved by the Authority’...
	18. PERFORMANCE OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. During the term of this Agreement and all Supplemental Amendments thereof, THEA will review various phases of Consultant operations, such as construction inspection, materials sampling and testing, and administrative activities, to determine compli...
	i. Further subdivide assigned inspection responsibilities, reassign inspection personnel, or assign additional inspection personnel, within one week of notification.
	ii. Immediately replace personnel whose performance has been determined by the Consultant and/or THEA to be inadequate.
	iii. Immediately increase the frequency of monitoring and inspection activities in phases of work that are the Consultant's responsibility.
	iv. Increase the scope and frequency of training of the Consultant personnel.
	19. REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONSULTANT
	a. General
	i. It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant to administer, monitor, and inspect the Construction Contract such that the Project is constructed in reasonable conformity with the plans, specifications, and special provisions for the Contract.
	ii. The Consultant shall observe the Contractor’s work to determine the progress and quality of work, identify discrepancies, report significant discrepancies to THEA, and direct Contractor to correct such observed discrepancies.
	iii. The Consultant shall consult with the Authority’s Project Manager as it deems necessary and shall direct all issues, which exceed its delegated authority to the Authority’s Project Manager for THEA action or direction.
	iv. The Consultant shall advise the Authority’s Project Manager of any significant omissions, substitutions, defects, and deficiencies noted in the work of the Contractor and the corrective action that has been directed to be performed by the Contract...
	b. Survey Control:
	i. The Contractor shall develop and provide all survey control required for this Contract, if required.
	c. Design Coordination:   NOT APPLICABLE
	d. Project Resident Inspection:
	i. The Consultant shall exercise their independent professional judgment in providing services to monitor and inspect the Contractors on-site construction operations and to inspect all materials entering into the work as required to determine that the...
	ii. The standard procedures and practices of THEA for inspection of the Construction project are set out in the Department's CPAM. The Consultant shall perform inspection services in accordance with these standard procedures and practices and other ac...
	e. Sampling and Testing:
	i. The testing program shall be developed per requirements listed in the Construction Contract Scope. The Consultant shall act as verification of the Construction Quality Control Program. The Contractor shall perform Quality Control (QC) level materia...
	ii. The Consultant shall verify that the materials and workmanship incorporated in the Project are in reasonable conformity with the plans, specifications and contract provisions. The Consultant shall be specifically responsible for job control sample...
	f. Engineering Services:
	i. The Consultant shall coordinate the Contract administration activities of all parties other than the Contractor involved in completing the construction project. Notwithstanding the above, the Consultant is not liable to THEA for failure of such par...
	ii. Services include maintaining the required level of surveillance of the Contractor activities, interpreting plans, specifications, and special provisions for the Contract, maintaining complete, accurate records of all activities and events relating...
	1. Schedule and attend, within ten (10) days after the Notice to Proceed, a pre- service conference for the Project. The Consultant shall provide appropriate staff to attend and participate in the pre-service meeting.
	2. Analyze problems that arise on a project and proposals submitted by the Contractor, endeavor to resolve such issues, and process the necessary paperwork.
	3. Produce reports, verify quantity calculations, field measure for payment purposes as needed to prevent delays in Contractor operations and ensure prompt processing of such information in order for THEA to make timely payment to the Contractor.
	4. Prepare and submit to the Construction Project Manager monthly, a Construction Status Report, in a format to be provided by THEA.
	5. Video tape the pre-construction conditions throughout the Project limits. Provide a digital photo log or video of project activities, with heavy emphasis on potential claim items/issues and on areas of real/potential public controversy.
	6. The Consultant shall have a digital camera for photographic documentation of noteworthy incidents or events to cover the following areas:
	a. Pre-construction photographs
	b. Normal and exceptional progress of work
	c. Critical path activities
	d. Accidents showing damage.
	e. Unsafe working conditions
	f. Unusual construction techniques
	g. Damaged equipment or materials
	h. Any activity, which may result in claims.
	These photographs will be filed and maintained on the Consultant’s computer. Copies of photographs will be electronically transferred to the CPM at an interval determined by the Senior Project Engineer and the Construction Project Manager.
	The taking of the photographs shall begin the day prior to the start of construction and continue regularly throughout this Project. Photographs shall be taken the days of Conditional, Partial and/or Final Acceptance.
	20. PERSONNEL/STAFFING:
	a. Consultant shall provide qualified personnel necessary to efficiently and effectively carry out its responsibilities identified in this Scope of Services.
	b. Consultant shall provide competent personnel qualified by experience and education as submitted to and approved by the THEA Director of Expressway Operations.
	c. Once authorized, the Consultant shall establish and maintain appropriate staffing throughout the duration of construction and completion of the final estimate. Responsible personnel, thoroughly familiar with all aspects of construction and final me...
	d. Construction engineering and inspection forces will be required of the Consultant while the Contractor is working. If Contractor operations are substantially reduced or suspended, the Consultant will reduce its staff appropriately.
	e. In the event that the suspension of Contractor operations requires the removal of Consultant forces from the project, the Consultant will be allowed ten (10) days maximum to demobilize, relocate, or terminate such forces.
	21. OTHER SERVICES:
	a. Upon written authorization by the THEA Director of Expressway Operations or designee, the Consultant will perform additional services in connection with the project not otherwise identified in this Scope of Services. The following items are not inc...
	i. Assist in preparing for arbitration hearings or litigation that occurs during the project time in connection with the construction project covered by this Scope of Services.
	ii. Provide qualified engineering witnesses and exhibits for arbitration hearings or litigation in connection with the Scope of Services.
	iii. Provide inspection services in addition to those provided for in this Scope of Services.
	iv. Provide services determined necessary for the successful completion and closure of the Construction Contract.

	IV B 2 Copy of MH estimate THEA traffic management renovations contract 12-8-23B
	IV B 3 CW Roberts - COR01 Pay Items Revised 02-19-24
	IV B 5 23 1105 THEA Expressway and 301 Design Only Scope w Signalization Crosstown Team 1 page estimate
	VI A 1 Copy of Contract Renewal and Expiration Report for Board Package Feb 24 2.15.24 (1)
	Renewal and Exp. Rep


